SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ECONOMY

Present:

Councillor Margaret Baldwin (Chair)

Councillors Gale, P J Brock, Newcombe, Payne, Robson, Sheldon, Taghdissian, Wardle and Winterbottom

Interim Director Economy and Development, Head of Economy and Tourism, Acting Head of Estates Services, Head of Parking, Engineering and Business Support and Member Services Officer (SLS)

Also present:

Councillor Peter Wadham -	Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Development and
	Transport
Councillor Stella Brock -	Portfolio Holder for Economy and Tourism

23 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2010 were taken as read and signed by the Chair as correct.

24 **Declarations of Interest**

The following personal interests were declared:-

COUNCILLOR	MINUTE
Councillors Newcombe and Winterbottom Councillor Payne Councillors Gale and Taghdissian, P J Brock and Newcombe Councillor Gale	 25 (members of the Exeter Canal and Quay Trust) 28 (employee and member of Board of Governors of Exeter College) 29 (members of the Exeter Highways and Traffic Orders Committee) 29 (Chair of the Exeter Community Transport Association Board)

25 Portfolio Holders Priorities for the Forthcoming Year

Councillors Winterbottom and Newcombe declared a personal interest as members of the Exeter Canal and Quay Trust.

Councillor Wadham presented the following priorities within the Transport and Sustainable Development Portfolio for 2010/11, and covered the following topics:-

- Long Term Spatial Strategy;
- The Challenge of Delivering Strategic Sites;
- Quality of Residential Development;
- New Growth Point;
- Affordable Housing;
- Single Conversation;

- Climate Change;
- Bus Station Site;
- City Centre Enhancements;
- Long Term Transportation Strategy;
- Concessionary Travel
- Civil Parking Enforcement.

A copy of the briefing note, together with a brief explanation on each priority was attached as an appendix to the report.

The following responses were given: -

- the Regional Spatial Strategy Housing recommendation was due to be debated at forthcoming meetings of the Planning Member Working Group and Executive.
- the Member suggestion for involving and encouraging local talent in some aspect of the design of the city centre enhancements and developments around the city would be investigated.

Councillor Mrs S R Brock presented the following priorities within the Economy and Tourism Portfolio for 2010/11, and covered the following topics:-

- Economic Development Strategy;
- Exeter & Heart of Devon Economic Development Partnership;
- Small Businesses;
- City Centre Promotion;
- Canal Basin;
- Science Park;
- Inward Investment;
- Skills and Workforce Development;
- Tourism
- Employment Land Provision.

A copy of the briefing note, together with a brief explanation on each priority was attached as an appendix to the report.

The following responses were given: -

- The Head of Economy and Tourism confirmed that the recent transfer of the Northcott Theatre to a new company for the period until March 2011 was progressing. He outlined the administration process, stating that the question over the return of some or all, of the interest free loan to the City Council remained with the administrators and could not be a matter for the new company. The Council had in principle, committed its grant funding, with the bulk of the grant being subject to the preparation of an appropriate programme for the remainder of the year. He also provided an update on the management and staffing structure now in place.
- Councillor Mrs Brock referred to the challenges of monitoring the economy in the current financial climate. The City Council was working in co-operation with a range of partners to support the local economy and progress strategic employment sites such as the Science Park. It was difficult to respond to the Government's intention to rationalise public sector finances at this time, but every effort would be made to continue to work in partnership and keep job losses in both the private and public sector low.

• The Acting Head of Estates referred to the developments at the Canal Basin and the difficulties being experienced by the City Council's development partners in securing funding to bring forward their schemes. Cllr Newcombe provided an update on the Outdoor Education Centre advising that the County Council had agreed provisional terms with the Exeter and Canal and Quay Trust in respect of the proposed site.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the comments and priorities presented.

26 The Challenges of Delivering the Growth Agenda

The Interim Director Economy and Development made a presentation which identified the challenges of delivering Exeter's Growth Agenda. Exeter will have difficulty in supporting such levels of growth and subsequent impact on demography unless there is an adequate public transport, education, social and transport infrastructure in place. The areas covered were:-

- scale of growth
- infrastructure demands
- cross boundary working
- uncertainty over the national/regional picture
- funding cuts for transport and affordable housing
- costs of delivering a low carbon solution for sustainable homes

The provision of sufficient number of dwellings presents significant challenges and not least the current policy for the delivery of 28,500 new dwellings by 2026, which the City Council's Executive will have to consider. It will also be necessary to determine the amount of housing growth appropriate to meet Exeter's housing and employment needs. The Government have already stated their intention to rapidly abolish regional spatial strategies and return decision-making powers for housing and planning to local authorities.

The presentation also identified the critical transport infrastructure needed to deliver the growth including the enhancement of Junction 29 of the M5 motorway. The immediate demands must be to ensure a funding access strategy for phases one and two of the East of Exeter developments including the Science Park, Sky Park and Cranbrook. Future growth is dependent on the Department for Transport and Regional Infrastructure funding and a decision on whether such projects will proceed is largely dependent on whether the funding will continue after the forthcoming Emergency Budget on 22 June. A number of alternative funding models were discussed.

The future direction and way forward included consideration of the following:-

- consideration of the core strategy and identify the total number of dwellings to be provided;
- develop an essential Infrastructure Plan;
- provide an alternative delivery plan for the Phase 2 Access Strategy;
- explore alternative funding mechanisms;
- scrutinise key public transport proposals to assess implications for delivering the Devon Metro, (the network of services radiating from Exeter to Paignton, Plymouth, Exmouth and Barnstaple), to look at providing additional train capacity on the existing and future infrastructure/ and High Quality Public Transport, which could provide a real alternative to private car use,

persuading more people to use public transport with new and faster bus routes across the city; and

 explore with energy providers the option for bringing forward energy distribution networks.

The Chair suggested that the Scrutiny Committee explore up to three of the topics identified above through Task and Finish Working Groups and they could explore the subject matter in more detail, inviting representatives from relevant individuals or bodies. The Interim Director suggested that the groups would need to consider the principles and detail of the future infrastructure, and draw on existing effective partnership work as well as source new and established contacts. It was suggested that up to four sessions would enable an understanding of the topics and to report back to Scrutiny Economy in the Spring 2011. Members would be contacted for a nomination from each Group. A Member agreed that there was also a need to have a discussion with the most relevant Highways and Traffic Orders Committees including Exeter, East Devon and Teignbridge District Councils. It was noted that a considerable amount of work was already being carried out by these Districts and the County Council.

Members supported the establishment of a Task and Finish Working Group to consider the Devon Metro concept.

27 Economy Update

The joint report of the Interim Director Economy and Development and Head of Economy and Tourism provided Members with an update on the performance of the national and the local Exeter economy.

A Member commented on the likely long term impact and mitigating measures relating to the change in VAT and a more prounounced downward trend towards large scale loss of business. The Head of Economy and Tourism stated that a number of indicators including the Chamber of Commerce indicate an improving trend.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the report and would present a further report to the next meeting.

(Report circulated)

28 Economic Development Service - Update

Councillor Payne declared a personal interest as an employee and a member of the Board of Governors of Exeter College.

The Head of Economy and Tourism presented a report which provided Members with an overview of the Economic Development Service's activities during 2009/2010 and set out its priorities for 2010/11. The report provided a broad overview on the strategic focus of the long term strategy, together with the key areas of business support, partnership activity, and the opportunities and potential growth that lie to the east of the city.

The Service's key priorities for the year were summarised in paragraph 5.2. A briefing note on the progress of the proposal for the Business Improvement District (BID) for Exeter was circulated for information. A BID would enable both the public and private sector to make a number of improvements and offer added value to the

environment and community of the city centre. This initiative is business led, and their support will be needed to ensure that this is in place for spring 2011.

The Head of Economy and Tourism responded to a number of Member comments and outlined the detail of the Exeter Positive Steps funding, which had originally taken advantage of EU funding. The primary target of support is for individuals of all ages and for schemes in deprived neighbourhoods. The outcomes and participants are closely monitored with support for existing participants included in the current financial year. He would explore the suggestion of whether the City Council could offer some support for a science based bursary or similar long term educational offer, in conjunction with local business, to encourage an individual to develop a career in engineering and science. This could start from the primary years through to a locally based higher education course, culminating in assistance to find local employment. The Head of Economy and Tourism also responded to a comment referring to the difficulty of monitoring service performance due to the nature of the role and the lengthy time needed for projects to create employment opportunities, such as the Science Park.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the report and the economic development activities for 2010/2011.

(Report circulated)

29 Exeter Community Transport Association

Councillors Gale, P Brock, Newcombe and Taghdissian declared a personal interest as members of the Exeter Highways and Traffic Orders Committee (HATOC). Councillor Gale also declared a personal interest as Chair of the Exeter Community Transport Association Board (ECTA).

The Projects and Business Manager presented a report which informed Members of the financial overrun experienced by Exeter Community Transport Association (ECTA) in respect of the budget for the Taxicard scheme for 2009/10. It is proposed that ECTA's funding will be brought within the Council's grant allocation process so that with effect from 2011, with funding agreed in principle for three year periods if the Grants Committee considered this appropriate. A Member made a plea that every effort be made to support the increasing costs faced by this very necessary service.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the report, in particular the steps proposed by the Exeter Community Transport Association (ECTA) to deal with the budget shortfall for Taxicard, and the proposal to include ECTA in the core grants process from 2011.

(Report circulated)

30 Capital Programme Monitoring

The Interim Director Economy and Development presented a report which advised Members of the final position with regard to the 2009/10 capital programme for the Economy and Development Directorate. He responded to a number of comments including the maintenance of the Heavitree Arch and Network Rail's productive response to the ongoing Central Station Gateway enhancements which requires a more practical approach.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the contents of the report.

(Report circulated)

31 Economy Stewardship 2009/10 (Final Accounts)

The Interim Director Economy and Development presented a report which advised Members of the overall financial performance of the Economy and Development Directorate for the 2009/10 financial year ending 31 March 2010. The final outturn highlighted the major difference by management unit from the approved annual budget and the main variations showed a final surplus of £389,927 after accounting for transfers to earmarked reserves.

He highlighted the current financial situation of a number of areas including Building Control and the Archaeological Field Unit, both of which continue to suffer from the downturn in the building industry. He referred to the action taken last year to address the deficit by adjusting staffing levels and every effort continues to be made to drive down costs, and be as competitive as possible. He also referred to changes in Planning Services following a marked reduction in staff. The service should be commended for the professional and competitive manner in which they operate, in what has been a very difficult 18 months.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the contents of the report.

(Report circulated)

32 Annual Results of Performance Monitoring 2009/10

The Interim Director Economy and Development presented a report, which identified the annual figures for those statutory and local performance indicators that relate to services provided by the Economy and Development Directorate. The report included national indicators as well as locally set targets.

A Member commented on the withdrawal of parking for European coaches at the Bus Station and suggested this would have a detrimental effect on visitor numbers at attractions in the city. It was noted that this was part of a national policy change by Stagecoach. Despite local protest and lobbying through the Chamber of Commerce and local Hoteliers Association, Stagecoach has not changed their stance and a ban on all such coach parking on the Bus Station site remains. The Head of Economy and Tourism stated they would continue to lobby with the private sector and the County Council.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy noted the report.

(Report circulated)

33 Review of Business

The Interim Director Economy and Development sought Members' approval of the programme. Two additions included a further report on the economy to be made to the next meeting and a report from the Task and Finish group early next year.

Scrutiny Committee – Economy supported the programme for the year.

(Report circulated)

The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 8.00 pm